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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF NEW JERSEY
CAMDEN VICINAGE

VERONICA GRAVES,
Plaintiff, . CivilNo. 10-369(RBK/KMW)
V. . OPINION
ANCORA PSYCHIATRICHOSPITAL,

Defendant.

KUGLER, United State®istrict Judge:

This matter comes before the Court oa timopposed motion of Ancora Psychiatric
Hospital (“Defendant”) to dismiss the Amendedn@naint of Veronica Graves (“Plaintiff”).
Because the Court finds that Plaintiff'suchs under 42 U.S.C. § 1983 are time-barred,
Defendant’s motion to dismiss pursuant to FedRtaé of Civil Procedur&2(b)(6) is granted in
part. Because the Court also finds that Plaintiff's Title VIl allegations are so ambiguous that
Defendant cannot reasonably prepare a resptres€ourt grants Defendant’s motion for a more
definite statement of Plaintiff's pleadings, puastito Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 12(e).

l. BACKGROUND

In this employment discrimination and unfahtermination lawsuit, Plaintiff seeks both
retrospective monetary damages and reinstatetodretr position as a Nursing Clerk Transcriber
at Ancora State Psychiatric Hospital. Pldfrappears to allege & she was kept as a
provisional employee for fivegars, in violation of the Ne Jersey State Civil Service

Commission rules. The facts underlying this evatire not set forth in the Amended Complaint
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in a manner that is easy to understand, padittubecause the Amended Complaint does not
match factual allegations withegHegal claims they purportediygport. Nevertheless, the Court
is able to gather that Plaintiff raises claiai<ivil rights violations pursuant to 42 U.S.C.
§ 1983" and claims for race discrimination anchder discrimination under Title VII of the
Civil Rights Act of 1964 and 1991, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 2000e%etaintiff's Title VII
claims appear to allege injury due to wramngérmination and a hostile workplace. Jes.
Compl,. Pl.’s Cert. Specifidgl Plaintiff alleges that she was unlawfully terminated for
discriminatory reasons, that she was “harassed|[,] humiliated[,] and berated” by her supervisor,
Doris Vacca, and that she was forced to ugdan additional and extended period as a
provisional employee, in violain of what the Court has gleaned to be the New Jersey Civil
Service Statute, N.J.S.A. 11A:4-13(b). Am. Compl., Pl.’s Cert. Delspitimg pieced together
these allegations, the Court is unable to teasextremely pertinent facts that would make it
possible for Defendant to respond to PldiistiAimended Complaint. For example, the
Amended Complaint does not indie approximately when in 20@1aintiff was hired or when
in 2007 Plaintiff was terminated, when Plaihshould legally have expected to become a
certified permanent employee at the hospitad, @hat specific incidents made up the “hostile
work environment” Plaintiff alleges.

Defendant moves to dismiss Plaintiff's § 1988ms, pursuant to Federal Rule of Civil

Procedure 12(b)(6), on the basis that theytiare-barred, that Defendais not a “person”

! Plaintiff also alleges that Defendatted in violation of due process and fourteenth Amendment. Because the
Due Process Clause is contained within the Fourteenmédment, the reference igltendant. Moreover, because
the United States Constitution enumerates only rightsppssed to remedies, claims of constitutional violation
against states must be raised througtatutory gateway. In this case, th@mpriate statute is 42 U.S.C. § 1983;
consequently, Plaintiff's due process and Fourteenth Amentlatlegations are included in Plaintiff's § 1983 claim
and the Court treatiem accordingly.

2 Although Plaintiff alleges that she is over 40, Aee Compl., Pl.’s Certification, an allegation that is often
contained in age discrimination claims, here Plaintifkesano other age-related factual allegations or legal
arguments that would permit the Court to construe that an age discrimination claim has been raised.
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within the meaning of § 1983, and that Defendasta state entity, is immunized from suit by
the Eleventh Amendment, whdtee state has not waived thidmunity or where Congress has
not abrogated it. Defendant also moves to disialaintiff's Title VII claims on the basis that
Plaintiff's Amended Complaint fails to allegefcient facts to plausly support her claim for
relief. In the alternative, Defendant moves,suant to Federal Rule @ivil Procedure 12(e),
for a more definite statemeaf Plaintiff's pleading.
Il. STANDARD

A. Motion to Dismiss

Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 12(b)(6) allosvsourt to dismiss an action for failure to
state a claim upon which relief can be grantéten evaluating a motion to dismiss, “courts
accept all factual allegations as true, constraecttmplaint in the light most favorable to the
plaintiff, and determine whether, under any reasonable reading ofrtipdasit, the plaintiff

may be entitled to relief.’Fowler v. UPMC Shadysid&78 F.3d 203, 210 (3d Cir. 2009)

(quoting_Phillips v. County of Alleghen15 F.3d 224, 233 (3d Cir. 2008)). In other words, a
complaint survives a motion to dismiss if it congasufficient factual matter, accepted as true, to

“state a claim to relief that is plausible on its face.” Ashcroft v. |di&6 U.S. 662, 129 S. Ct.

1937, 1949, 173 L. Ed. 2d 868 (2009); Bell Atlantic Corp. v. Tworihp U.S. 544, 570, 127

S. Ct. 1955, 167 L. Ed. 2d 929 (2007).

To make this determination, a three-garalysis is neededsantiago v. Warminster

Twp., 629 F.3d 121, 130 (3d Cir. 2010). First, tbenrt must “tak[e] note of the elements a
plaintiff must plead to state a claim.”_l@juoting_ Igbal 129 S. Ct. at 1947). Second, the court
should identify allegations thathecause they are no more thamclusions, are not entitled to

the assumption of truth.”_Idquoting_Igbal 129 S. Ct. at 1950). Fily “where there are well-



pleaded factual allegations, a cosinould assume their veracitychthen determine whether they
plausibly give rise to an étlement for relief.” _Id.(quoting_Igbal 129 S. Ct. at 1950). This
plausibility determination is a “context specifask that requires thewiewing court to draw on
its judicial experience and common sense.” Igbad S. Ct. at 1949. A complaint cannot
survive where a court can only infer that a clairmexely possible rather than plausible. 1d.

B. Motion for a More Definite Statement of a Pleading

“A party may move for a more definiteastment of a pleading to which a responsive
pleading is allowed but which & vague or ambiguous that {herty cannot reasonably prepare
aresponse.” Fed. R. Civ. P. 12(e). Whethagrant a motion under Rule 12(e) is a matter

committed largely to the discretion of the district court. Meélenry v. Renne84 F.3d 1172,

1179 (9th Cir. 1996); Hodgson v. Va. Baptist Hosp.,, 482 F.2d 821, 824 (4thCir. 1973); Page

Steel & Wire Co. v. Blair Eng’g Cp22 F.2d 403, 407 (3d Cir. 1927).

The prevailing standard employed by distdeurts in this Circuit is to grant such a

motion “when the pleading is ‘so vagueasnbiguous that the opposing party cannot respond,

even with a simple denial, in good faith, withguéjudice to [itself].” _Sun Co. v. Badger

Design & Constructors, Inc939 F. Supp 365, 368 (E.D. Pa. 1996) (quoting 5A Charles A.

Wright & Arthur R. Miller, Federal Practices & Proced@&é@376 (2d ed. 1990)); see Murray v.

Gencorp, InG.979 F. Supp 1045, 1050-51 (E.D. Pa. 199W9pd & Locker, Inc. v. Doran &

Assocs, 708 F. Supp 684, 691 (W.D. Pa. 1989); Lincoln Labs., Inc. v. Savage lrahs26

F.R.D. 141, 143 (D. Del. 1960). Examples whie standard has been met are where the
allegations of a complaint are not sufficiently specific to enable a defendant to determine the

propriety of interposing in his answer a waivable defensd, sederstadt v. Colafel|e8885 F.2d

66, 68-69 (3d Cir. 1989); Murra®79 F. Supp. at 1051, or where, in the absence of certain



information peculiarly within the knowledge tife plaintiff, the defedant cannot, in good faith,
answer the complaint Wi a general denial, sééncoln Labs, 26 F.R.D. at 143.
lll.  DISCUSSION

A. Statute of Limitations for Plaintiff's 8§ 1983 Claims

Defendant moves to dismiss Plaintiff 4883 claims on the grounds that they are time-
barred. “The length of the statute of limitats for a 8 1983 claim is governed by the personal
injury tort law of the state wheredltause of action arose.” Kach v. Hds89 F.3d 626, 634

(3d Cir. 2009) (citing Wallace v. Kat®49 U.S. 384, 387, 127 S. Ct. 1091, 166 L. Ed. 2d 973

(2007)). The statute of limitations for a causeaction under § 1983 arising in New Jersey is two
years. N.J. Stat. Ann. § 2A:14-2. Moreovéfleteral law governs a cause of action’s accrual
date.” Kach589 F.3d at 634. Under federal law, a caafs#ction accrues “hen the plaintiff
knew or should have known of the injurpon which [the] action is based.” [duoting

Sameric Corp. v. City of Philadelphia42 F.3d 582, 599 (3d Cir. 1998)). As the Third Circuit

explained in Kach

The determination of the time at which a mlaccrues is an objecévunquiry; we ask not
what the plaintiff actually knew but whatr@asonable person should have known. As a
general matter, a cause of action accruéiseatime of the last event necessary to

complete the tort, usually at the time the piifi suffers an injury. The cause of action
accrues even though the full extent of the injury is not then known or predictable. Were it
otherwise, the statute woulddie to run only after a plairffibecame satisfied that he

had been harmed enough, placing the supposedestdtrepose in the sole hands of the
party seeking relief.

Id. Thus Plaintiff's § 1983 claimsere required to have been @lgithin two years of the “last
event necessary to complete the tort” she alleges.

Plaintiff's 8 1983 claims arise out of heritg allegedly kept aa provisional employee
for longer than the period allowed for in tNew Jersey Civil Service statute, N.J. Stat.

8 11A:4-16, as well as her alleged harassmedtraumiliation while employed at Ancora State



Psychiatric Hospital, and herteination. For the purposes of determining the time at which
Plaintiff's claim accrues, the Court finds that thest event necessary to complete the tort” was
the termination itself. Plaintiff's Amended @plaint asserts that she was terminated from
employment at Ancora State Psychiatric Hdpn 2007. Although Plaitiff has not included
the precise date on which she was terminaeeln assuming (as Defendant does) that her
termination took place on the last pidsidate—December 31, 2007—Plaintiff’'s § 1983 claim
is nevertheless time-barred. Plaintiff's original Complaint fitled on January 22, 2010,
meaning that, at a minimum, two years and ty«hree days (or 754 days) lapsed between the
completion of the constitutional tort allegedlins case and the filing of Plaintiff’s initial
Complaint. Therefore, because Plaintiff's § 1988k were filed after thtwo-year statute of
limitations had lapsed, the Court grants Deli@nt’'s motion to dismiss those claims.

B. Plaintiff's Race and Gender Disrimination in Employment Claims

Although the factual allegatiord Plaintiff's Amended Complaint are difficult to make
out, Plaintiff does indicate that this lawsuibi®ught under Title VII. Am. Compl. Moreover,
because Plaintiff indicates that “other males whies were not subjectéd this treatment and
forced to endure two probationary periods,” @aurt has been able to discern that Plaintiff
alleges race and gender discrintioa, and it appears th&faintiff has raised these claims on a
disparate treatment theory. Am. Compl., RC&xt. However, Plaintiff's Amended Complaint
does not contain any specific faat allegations that would alloDefendant to affirm or deny
Plaintiff's claims. Plaintiff alleges that stiwas harassed humiliated and berated by Doris
Vacca Supervisor,” without enumerating osdebing any specific alleged instances of
discriminatory treatment. Am. Compl., PIC®rt. Moreover, Plaiiff's Amended Complaint

does not indicate the time periods during whichriiiiwas allegedly unlawfully employed as a

% In fact, the active Complaint in this case is the Amdr@emplaint, which was not filed until November 16, 2011.
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“provisional” employee, nor does Plaintiff's Amged Complaint make it clear whether Plaintiff
intentionally draws a distinction between employment under “provisional” status, versus
“probationary” employment. Rally, Plaintiff claims that, “after noticing [its] mistake,”
Defendant “attempted to repair [its] error by gragtplaintiff[] the right toa civil service review
and examination after which she was then cettifie. .” Am. Compl., 2. However, Plaintiff
fails to explain when or how Defendant noti¢edalleged mistake, and does not state when
Plaintiff's review, examinatiorand certification should alleggdhave taken place, nor when
Plaintiff's review, examination, ancertification did take place.

Accordingly, the Amended Complaint does nontain sufficient iformation that would
allow Defendant to affirm or ey Plaintiff's allegations withmay certainty. The Court therefore
orders Plaintiff to submit a more definite statrof her allegationsnd the specific incidents
and facts that purportedly support those legahtd. Importantly, because Plaintiff does not
clearly match her legal claims with the facts @éggedly underlie thenit, is not possible for the
Defendant (or this Court) to determine whethenatr Plaintiff has madeut a prima facie case
of racial discrimination or geler discrimination under Title Vfi. Therefore, Plaintiff's more
definite statement of her allegations showtHinumerically—the facts Plaintiff alleges.
Plaintiff should also enumeratan (ihe same document) the elemeofther Title VII claims that

these facts are intended to support.

* A Plaintiff establishes a prima facie edsy showing the following: (1) thatelis a member of a protected class;

(2) that she is qualified for the position; (3) that she wasitated from that position; and (4) that her termination
occurred under circumstances that “give rise to an inference of unlawful discrimination such as might occur when
the position is filled by a person not o€tprotected class.” Jones v. School D8 F.3d 403, 410-11 (3d Cir.

1999). See alsBchurr v. Resorts Intern. Hotel, Int96 F.3d 486, 499 (3d Cir. 1999) (“In the Third Circuit, the
elements of employment discrimination under Title VII are identical to the elements of a section 1981 claim.”).
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IV.  CONCLUSION

For the foregoing reasons, Defendant’s motion to dismS®RKBNTED IN PART , and
Plaintiff's § 1983 claims arBISMISSED. Defendant’s motion to dismiss Plaintiff's Title VII
claims isDENIED WITHOUT PREJUDICE , and Defendant’s motion for a more definite
statement of Plaintiff's Title VII claims IGRANTED. Plaintiff is ordered to file a more
definite statement withifourteen (14) daysof the entry of this Opinion and its accompanying

Order. An accompanying Order shall issue today.

Dated: 3/30/2012 /s/ Robert B. Kugler
ROBERT B. KUGLER
Lhited States District Judge




